IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SID I MAITE
JUN 15 1995

GEORGE KORDON and LEONA KORDON, his wife,

Petitioners,

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By ______
Chief Deputy Clerk

Case No.

DCA Case No. 94-03943

V.

WAL-MART STORES INC.,

Respondent.

PETITIONERS' JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

On Review from the District Court of Appeal, Second District State of Florida

Lon Worth Crow IV, Esq. KELLY & CROW 14 South Lake Avenue Avon Park, Florida 33825 (813) 453-7509 Attorney for Petitioners Fla. Bar. No. 0898228

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This action involves a claim by Petitioners for damages against the Respondent for defamation. It is alleged that the Respondent directly through its managing agents made certain statements which were defamatory against the Petitioner. It is further alleged that the statements were made with malice and the conduct of Respondent was outrageous. (A-1). On February 28, 1994, the Petitioner filed a Motion to Amend the Complaint to Allege Punitive Damages citing §768.72 Florida Statutes. (A-5). The Motion was set for hearing on June 22, 1994, in which the trial court reviewed the evidence both in the record and proffered to the court. The trial court determined that there was a "reasonable basis" to warrant an amendment to allege punitive damages. (A-6). On July 1, 1994, the Respondent filed a Motion for Rehearing/Reconsideration arguing that the decisions by the trial court was error in light of several new cases cited. (A-8). The Petitioners filed a response of July 13, 1994. (A-13). On August 1, 1994, the trial court again heard extensive argument from counsel and by order dated August 10, 1994, denied Respondent's Motion. (A-16). On August 5, 1995, the Respondent filed a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment as to the claim for punitive damages. (A-18). On September 8, 1994, the trial court again heard extensive argument from counsel and by order dated September 13, 1994, denied the Respondent's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. (A-20). On September 26, 1994, Respondent filed another Motion for Rehearing/Clarification. (A-22). On September 27, 1994, the Petitioners' filed their response. (A-25). On October 6, 1994, the Respondent filed a Motion to Strike Plaintiffs' Claim for Punitive Damages/Motion for Bifurcation. (A-28). On October 17, 1994, after again hearing extensive argument from counsel, the trial court denied Respondent's Motion to Strike. (A-35). On November 7, 1994, the Respondent filed a Motion to Stay Trial Proceedings for the trial scheduled for November 14, 1994, citing as grounds the simultaneous filing of a Petition for Writ of Certiorari in the Second District Court of Appeal. (A-37). The motion was denied by the trial court. On November 8, 1994, the trial court ordered that the Respondent produce a statement of net worth. (A-39). On November 10, 1994, the Respondent filed an Emergency Motion for Stay of Lower Court Proceedings with the Second District Court of Appeal. On November 10, 1994, the Second District Court of Appeal granted the Emergency Motion for Stay. (A-40). On November 22, 1994, the Second District Court of Appeal ordered the Petitioner to file its response to the Respondent's Petition for Writ of Certiorari. (A-41). On December 12, 1994, the Petitioner filed its response to Respondent's Petition for Writ of Certiorari. (A-42). On June 2, 1995, the Second District Court of Appeal granted the Writ of Certiorari and quashed the trial court's order denying the motion to strike the claim for punitive damages and ordering production of financial discovery. (A-53).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Petitioners filed an appropriate motion in the trial court under §768.72 Florida Statutes (1993) to amend their complaint to allege punitive damages. After examining the record and the evidence proffered by the Petitioners, the trial court found that there was a "reasonable basis" to support an amendment to the pleadings to allege punitive damages. As the trial court followed the exact procedure for considering an amendment to allege punitive damages under §768.72 Florida Statutes (1993), the Second District Court of Appeal did not have jurisdiction to issue a Writ of Certiorari quashing the trial court's decision. The district court's decision directly and expressly conflicts with the decision of this Court and of other district courts.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Florida Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of the Supreme Court or another district court of appeal on the same point of law. Art. V § 3(b)(3) Fla.Const. (1980); Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

ARGUMENT

The Decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in this Case Expressly and Directly Conflicts with the Decisions of the Supreme Court in Martin-Johnson, Inc. v. Savage, 509 So. 2d 1097 (Fla. 1987), the First District Court of Appeal in Globe Newspaper Co. v. King, 643 So. 2d 676 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994), review granted, 651 So. 2d 1193 (Fla. 1995), the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Sports Products, Inc. of Fort Lauderdale v. Estate of Marianne Inalien, 20 Fla. L. Weekly D13 (Fla. 4th DCA December 21, 1994), review granted (May 5, 1995) and the Fifth District Court of Appeal in Harley Hotels, Inc. v. Doe, 614 So. 2d 1133 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993).

The Second District Court of Appeal ruled that a denial of a motion to strike a claim for punitive damages after an amendment to the pleadings according to §768.72 Florida Statutes (1993) is reviewable by Certiorari. As analyzed below, the decision of the district court conflicts with decisions of this Court and other district courts. The Petitioners respectfully submit that this Court should grant discretionary review and resolve the conflict by quashing the decision of the district court.

The district court "expressly" found it had jurisdiction by way of Certiorari to review an order denying Respondent's motion to strike a claim for punitive damages. The district court decision is in direct conflict with the decision of this Court in Martin-Johnson, Inc. v. Savage, 509 So. 2d 1097 (Fla. 1987) where in this Court expressly stated that:

we cannot agree that certiorari is a proper vehicle for testing denial of a motion to strike a claim for punitive damages. Were we to permit certiorari review of such orders, either directly, as in the case at bar, or in connection with review of a discovery order, we in essence would be creating a new category of non-final orders reviewable on interlocutory appeal. We are unwilling to do so for a number of reasons.

Id. at 1099.

The district court's opinion is also in direct conflict with decisions from other district courts. In Globe Newspaper Co. v. King, 643 So. 2d 676 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994), review granted, 651 So. 2d 1193 (Fla. 1995), the First District denied certiorari certifying a conflict on whether certiorari is appropriate to review orders related to punitive damage claims. In Sports Products,

Inc. of Fort Lauderdale v. Estate of Marianne Inalien, 20 Fla.L.Weekly D13 (Fla. 4th DCA December 21, 1994), review granted (May 5, 1995), the Fourth District court held:

The court's certiorari jurisdiction is not so broad as to permit review of a finding that the plaintiff's evidentiary basis for punitive damages was sufficient to comply with the requirements of section 768.72, Florida Statutes, thereby permitting amendment of the complaint.

This court has certiorari jurisdiction to require that the trial court make a factual finding prior to granting leave to amend. See, e.g., <u>Kraft General Foods, Inc. v. Rosenblum</u>, 635 So.2nd 106 (Fla. 4th DCA), <u>rev. denied</u>, 642 So.2nd 1363 (Fla. 1994) (table); <u>Henn v. Sandler</u>, 589 So.2nd 1334 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991). However, the fact that this court will conduct an immediate review to determine whether the trial court has conducted the inquiry required by the statute does not also mean that we will exercise certiorari jurisdiction to conduct an immediate review of the findings of fact made in the course of that inquiry.

Id. In Harley Hotels, Inc. v. Doe, 614 So. 2d 1133 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993) the Fifth District held:

We are constrained to deny certiorari review of an order permitting a claim for punitive damages. Martin-Johnson, Inc. v. Savage, 509 So.2nd 1097 (Fla. 1987). In doing so, we acknowledge the defendant's valid concern regarding the extent of plaintiff's right to engage in discovery of defendant's financial resources. Nevertheless, we remind defendant that the supreme court has expressly approved the use of Rule 1.280(c) to limit such discovery. Tennant v. Charlton, 377 So.2nd 1169 (Fla. 1979).

Id.

The decision of the Second District in this case is in conflict with the cases cited above to the extent that it allows certiorari review of a lower court's decision granting leave to amend a complaint to allege punitive damages after full compliance with §768.72 Florida Statutes (1993). available to review this type of non-final order of trial courts. Thus, this Court should now reaffirm its previous position by accepting discretionary review and quashing the contrary decision of the district court below.

CONCLUSION

This Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below, and the Court should exercise that jurisdiction to consider the merits of the petitioner's arguments.