IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED
SID J. WHITE
JUL 10 1995

GEORGE KORDON and LEONA KORDON, his wife, Chief Deputy Clark

Petitioners,

vs.

CASE NO. 85,922 DCA Case No. 94-03943

WAL-MART STORES, INC.,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

VINCENT M. D'ASSARO, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar No. 0471690
HUNTER A. HALL, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar No. 0906972
CAMERON, MARRIOTT, WALSH, HODGES
& D'ASSARO, P.A.
15 West Church Street
Orlando, Florida 32801
407/841-5030
Attorneys for Petitioner

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent, WAL-MART STORES, INC., is in agreement with Petitioners' statement of the case and the specific procedural actions taken at the trial Court level and before the Second District Court of Appeals. Respondent, WAL-MART STORES, INC., would supplement the Petitioners' statement of the case and facts and add to it that the Petition for Writ of Certiorari as to the trial Court's denial of Respondents' Motion to Strike Claim for Punitive Damages was filed and served on November 8, 1994, contesting the Order denying the Motion to Strike dated October 17, 1994 (Appendix A). On November 8, 1994, the trial Court ordered the Defendant, WAL-MART STORES, INC., to produce financial information in compliance with F.S. §768.72. Citing this as additional grounds for its Petition for Writ of Certiorari, Respondent amended its initial Petition for Writ of Certiorari to include the November 8 Order compelling discovery. This amendment was filed November 10, 1994 (Appendix B).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Second District Court of Appeals reversed the trial Court's grant of punitive damages based on two (2) specific principles: the first, that they found no egregious conduct which they would classify as wanton and willful on the part of WAL-MART STORES, INC. which would rise to the level of punitive damages. But as an alternative ground, it was also determined that punitive damages should not lie against WAL-MART STORES, INC. because there

was no independent showing of fault on the part of WAL-MART as a corporation, using the analysis derived by the Supreme Court in Mercury Motor Express, Inc. v. Smith, 393 So.2d 545 (Fla. 1981). The Court, after examining the record, found no grounds for a claim for punitive damages to lie and properly reversed the trial Court.

ARGUMENT

The Second District Court of Appeals' decision is based upon two (2) independent grounds, the first of which is derived from the case of Key West Convalescent Center v. Doherty, 619 So. 2d 367, 369 (Fla. 3d DCA 1993), which requires some willful or wanton conduct on the part of the defendant in order for a claim for punitive The second ground for their damages to be plead. corporate decision is that, to hold a employer vicariously liable for punitive damages, there must be some fault on the employer's part in addition to willful and wanton employee conduct. Mercury Motors Express, Inc. v. Smith, 393 So.2d 545 (Fla. 1981). Based upon these grounds, the Court acted appropriately in striking the claim for punitive damages.

This cause of action arose after the termination of GEORGE KORDON from his employment at a Wal-Mart store in Sebring, Florida (See generally Appendix A, Page 3). Mr. Kordon was terminated from his employment for theft and, after his termination, brought a claim for defamation. At the trial Court level, three (3) specific statements by Wal-Mart personnel were pointed to as being a basis for the claim for defamation (See Appendix A, pp. 3-5). The three (3) statements or portions of testimony which the Plaintiff points to as being grounds for a claim for defamation do not rise to anywhere near the elements necessary to carry forward a claim for defamation. They further do not show the necessary wanton, willful misconduct on the part of Wal-Mart employees which would create a

sufficient basis for punitive damages.

In Martin-Johnson, Inc. v. Savage, 509 So.2d 1097 (Fla. 1987), this Honorable Court set forth that the District Court should not review by certiorari an interlocutory order denying a motion to dismiss or strike a claim for punitive damages. This court made its position clear that defendants should not be running to the District Courts every time a trial judge grants an amendment to the pleadings to allow a claim for punitive damages pursuant to F.S. \$768.72. In the case at bar, the Second DCA did not accept this petition for writ of certiorari filed by respondent, WAL-MART STORES, INC., solely based upon the argument that there was no basis in fact for allowing a punitive damage claim, and that Wal-Mart was wronged by the trial Court's allowing the claim to be plead without a sufficient factual basis.

Although there is case law from other circuits citing one of the more recent cases, <u>Commercial Carrier Corp. v. Cheryl Rockhead</u>, 639 So.2d 660 (Fla. 3d DCA 1994), wherein the Circuit Courts accepted a writ of certiorari and found that there was no reasonable basis for the trial Court to have allowed a claim for punitive damages to be plead. The Third District Court specifically states:

On the merits, it is apparent that the circumstances of this case - a motor vehicle accident in which there is evidence of little, if anything more than simply negligent driving by either or both of the parties involved - fall short of those required to support an action for punitive damages.

Id. at 661

In Commercial Carrier Corp. the Third DCA may have been taking

a forceful stance in attempting to change the well established law set forth in Martin-Johnson v. Savage prohibiting such writs of certiorari, Respondent would ask the Court to revisit its opinion of Martin-Johnson v. Savage and allow the District Courts more latitude in picking and choosing petitions for writ of certiorari on this issue of whether a reasonable basis has been in fact presented. Respondent believes that the District Courts should have the wherewithal to assess whether a reasonable basis exists and act accordingly.

The opinion of the Second DCA which is before this Court in the present case is clearly distinguishable from Commercial Carrier Corp. v. Rockhead, in that the Second DCA not only noted in their opinion that there was a lack of a reasonable basis for allowing punitive damages, but also that there must be fault on the part of the corporation for punitive damages to be plead. The Second District Court of Appeals states as follows:

To support a claim of punitive damages, a party must commit 'willful, wanton, and intentional misconduct.' Key West Convalescent Center, Inc. v. Doherty, 619 So.2d 367, 369 (Fla. 3d DCA 1993).

The Second DCA's opinion goes on to state:

To hold a corporate employer vicariously liable for punitive damages, there must be some fault on the employer's part in addition to the willful, wanton employee misconduct. Mercury Motors Express, Inc. v. Smith, 393 So.2d 545 (Fla. 1981). We have examined the record and conclude that it is insufficient to support a claim for punitive damages. Therefore, the trial court erred in denying the motion to strike.

It is clear from the Second DCA's opinion that, as this Honorable Court set forth in Mercury Motors Express, Inc. v. Smith,

in order for punitive damages to be brought against an employer or corporation such as Wal-Mart, it must be shown that there was some independent fault on the part of the employer in addition to any alleged willful and wanton misconduct of the employee. reasoning by the Second DCA which incorporates Mercury Motors Express, Inc. v. Smith is not in conflict with any other DCA or this Honorable Court's opinion in Martin-Johnson, Inc. v. Savage, The District Court is basing its 509 So.2d 1097 (Fla. 1987). opinion on the alternative ground that, in order for a claim for punitive damages to be brought against Wal-Mart, the corporation who is the sole defendant in this action, there must be some showing of independent fault on their part. There simply was no such showing presented in the record before trial Court. Second DCA is not relying on a challenge of a reasonable basis found in the evidence presented at the trial Court, but in fact has found a legal basis, removed from the factual "reasonable basis," for overturning the trial Court's decision to allow punitive damages to be plead.

CONCLUSION

Respondent, WAL-MART STORES, INC., would show this Court that the Second District Court of Appeals acted appropriately and within the confines of established case law and is in fact by its opinion not in conflict with the other District Courts of Appeal or this Honorable Court. Respondent would further request that this Honorable Court refuse discretionary jurisdiction and allow the well reasoned opinion of the Second District Court of Appeals to

stand.